
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2021.03.11 Public Hearing Meeting Minutes 
b) 2021.03.11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

 
5. Delegations: 

a) RCMP 
b) Mercer and Wilde (attending virtually) and Hakon Skoien 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) DRAFT Bylaw#239-2021 Cardston County Regional Emergency Management 
Partnership 

b) Review 2021 Tax Roll for council approval 
c) Business Licence bylaw – Whether to make mandatory or not? 
d) Ortho Photo - Grant was denied, to go forward it will cost the village. 
e) Air BnB’s  
f) Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP) 
g) Asphalting the Electronic waste (By Village shop) 

 
7. Councillor Reports: 

• Mayor Elias 
• Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
• Councillor Carter 
• Councillor Lybbert 
• Councillor Clark 

 
8. CAO Report: 

a) Training / Meetings Attended  
b) Office Closures  
c) Projects 
d) General update on Village  

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

9. Financial Reports: 
a) Accounts Payable Cheques for March 2021 (20210065-20210076) 
b) Budget vs Actual Review March 2021 
c) Bank Reconciliation – None this month 

 
10. Correspondence: 

a) 2021-02-11 Executive Committtee Meeting Minutes- ORRSC 
b) CCES - MINUTES Mar 4, 2021 
c) Ltr to Premier_Protection for Rocky Mountains_Coal Policy_2021-02-17 
d) 2021-02 Bulletin Alberta SW 
 

11. Closed Meeting: 
a) Land, Legal or Labour Matters As per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act     

 
12. Adjournment: 

 
 





ll
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES


February L1-, 2O2L; 6:00 pm
ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)


The Executive Committee Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Servlces Commission was held on
Thursday, February Il,2O2t, at 6:00 pm, in the Conference Room ofthe ORRSC Administration Building,
as well as virtually via Go To Meeting.


Attendance:


Executive Committee:
Gordon Wolstenholme, Chairman
Jim Bester, Vice Chair, Virtually
Don Anderberg, Virtually
Doug MacPherson, Virtually
lan Sundquist, Virtually
Richard Bengry


Staff:
Lenze Kuiper, Director
Tara Cryderman, Executive Assistant


Absent: Jennifer Crowson


New member Richard Bengry was welcomed to the Executive Committee.


Chairman Wolstenholme called the meetlnB to order, the time being 6:00 pm.


1. Approval of Agenda


Moved by: Richard Bengry


THAT the Executive Committee approve the February 11, 2021 Executive Committee Meeting
Agenda, as presented.


CARRIED


2, Approval of Minutes


Moved by: lan Sundquist


THATthe Executive Committee approve the December 3,2020 Executive committee Meeting
M inutes, as presented-


CARRIED


3. Business Arising from the Minutes


There was no business arising from the minutes


2021 ORRSC Executive Committee MeetinB Minutes - Page 1
February 11, 2021


OLDMAN RNER REGIONAL SERVICES C)MMISSI)N







a Municipal BorrowinB Bylaw - ATB Financial


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee authorize the Chair and Director to endorse the
2021 Municipal Borrowing Bylaw (Revolving Line of Credit) for ATB Financial.


CARRIED


b. Bill 48 Update


the Municipol Government Act lmplementation Fact Sheets were presented for information.


Key changes include:
. Municipalities are no longer permitted to seek an addition 5% Municipal and School


reserve in high density developments
. The Municipal Government Board will be named the Land and Property Rights


Tribunal (LPRT)


o LPRT will now hear both development AND subdivision appeals related to provincial


interests, authorizations granted by special regulators and authorizations granted by


the Minister of Environment and Parks


. All development and subdivision decisions must now state which Appeal Board an


appeal lies with


The Executive Committee was updated on the application and approval of the Regional
Relief and Recovery Fund Program. ORRSC applied for and received a 540,000 grant, in
which $30,000 must be paid back, within a specified timeline. Also, an Expansion Grant
Program is available, in which ORRSC applied for and received an additional520,000, in
which S10,000 must be paid back, within a specified timeline.


THAT the Executive Committee direct the ORRSC Director to ensure that the required
reimbursements from the Regional Relief and Recovery Fund Program and the Regional
Relief and Recovery Expansion Program be repaid at the end of their respective terms.


CARRIED


2021ORRSC Executive Committee l\4eeting Minutes - Page 2


February 'J.L,2027


4, New Business


Generally, most appeals will be forwarded to the LPRT, rather than the local SDAB.


This may be impactful to municipalities.


c. Regional Reliefand Recovery Fund Grant Application


Discussion occurred as to when the funds should be repaid.


Moved by: Doug MacPherson







d. Hamlet of Granum Update


Since the Town of Granum was amalgamated into the MD of Willow Creek to become the
Hamlet of Granum, the GIS services for Granum are no longer a separate service, and ORRSC


will no longer be providing this service, as the MD of Willow Creek has an in-house GIS


depa rtment.


Subd ivision Activitye


a Office Accounts


The Subdivision Activlty for December 2020 and January 2021 were presented for
informatlon.


Subdivision fees were discussed. The subdivision fees from Foothills County were
mentioned, for comparison purposes. The general consensus was that ORRSC's subdivision
fees were appropriate at this time.


(i)
(iil


(il
(ii)


Monthly Office Accounts - November 2020 and December 2020
Payments and Credits - November 2020 and December 2020


Moved by: Iim Bester


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Office Accounts for
November 2020, in the amount of S8,418.82, and the Office Accounts for
December 2020, in the amount of S8,779.2O;


AND THAT the Executive Committee approve the Payments and Credits for
November 2020 and December 2020.


b. Financial Statements


(iii)


Balance Sheets - November 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020
Comparative lncome Statement -
Actual to November 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020
Consolidated Statement -


Statement Dates - November 30, 2020 and December 3t,2O2O


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Balance Sheets as of
November 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020;


2021ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 3


Februaty 1L, 202L


5. Accounts


CARRIED







AND THAT the Executive Committee approve the Comparative lncome
Statements - Actual to November 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020;


AND FURTHER THAT the Executive Committee approve the Consolidated
Statements - dated November 30, 2020 and Decembet 3t,2OZO.


CARRIED


5. Directo/s Report


The Director reported on the following


. Emerg;ng Trends Workshop, scheduled for February 11 and February 18
o Weekly Planners meetings have commenced again
o Municipal orientation scheduled for the fall, following the municipal election
. Preparing for the annual financial and billing review regarding outstanding invoices
. Miistakis Project is proceeding
. Red Tape Reduction Report Card template.


- ORRSC is averaging 47 days to make a decision. The requirement is 60 days.
- ORRSC is averaging 4 days to deem an application complete. The requirement is 20 days.
- ORRSC is exceeding the provincial requirements.
- ORRSC has initiated many internal red tape reduction initiatives such as digital


submission and online payments.
. Focus series


- This will be a more academic report focusing on the aspects on planning issues. The
quarterly report will be for municipalities and the public. The template is drafted, with
the first edition expected in June.


o March Board of Directors Meeting. With the December Board of Dlrector's meeting
rescheduled to January there seems to be no need for a March meeting


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee authorize the cancellation of the March 4, 2021 Board of
Directors Meeting.


CARRIED


7. Executive Report


Members of the Executive Committee provided updates on their activities, and information
regarding their Municipalities, and spoke to the following:


Jim Bester:
- Spoke to the Saputa Milk Processing Plant, and its scheduled closure this sprinB
- lnfill development - people are moving into southern Alberta
- Cardston County is investing in internet infrastructure
- Grazing leases and disputes over access on grazing leases. There is discussion of a


Recreation Access Management Pla n


2021 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 4
Februa ry 11, 2021







Don Anderberg:
- Recreation in the Town, with the pool being closed, the arena open and the curling club


sporadic in operations
- The recent Business Support Program partnered with the Chamber of Commerce was a


success and received favourable response from the community
- There were 50 new business licenses issued in 2020
- Coal Policy and Water Rights discussions ongoing
- Rural Doctors Pay Plan
- Highway 3 Twinning and the twinning from Taber to Burdett. Hoping to be shovel ready


in spring 2022
- Recreation Master Plan with the MD of Pincher Creek
- Social Needs Assessment with FCSS for the area
- Economic Development Plan commencing
- Community Needs Assessment completed by AHS indicated there is a shortage of


mental health and addictions support in their region


Doug MacPherson:
- Red Tape Reduction template response
- Water license final installment payment
- LocalTransportation Society is meeting with AHS regarding non-medical ambulance


tra nsfe rs


- ICF with the MD of Willow Creek ongoing
- Completion ofthe day care and play school. Thls facillty is now open to the public.
- Multi-use Building ongoing, with completion and move in date anticipated for mid-April


lan Sundquist:
- Hamlet of Granum infrastructure improvements
- New Public Works building being constructed in the Hamlet of Granum
- Preparing a response to the Provincial Government regarding open coal mining
- Required lDPs and lCFs ongoing


Richard Bengry:
- Building permits are positive
- Residential Tax base
- Covid 19 challenges to the municipality
- Arena is still operating
- Recreation Centre Survey commencing


Gordon Wolstenholme
- ICF ongoing
- lce plants are shut down with the ice removed
- Pool construction ongoing


202L ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 5


February 11., 2021







8. Adjournment


Following all discussions, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme adjourned the meeting, the time being
7:05 pm.


CHAI


2021 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 6


February 11, 2021








MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD MARCH 4, 2021 
AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston    Tim Court – Town of Cardston       
Tom Nish – Cardston County     Don Shideler – Village of Hill Spring  
Royce Leavitt – Cardston County   Barton Lybbert – Village of Glenwood 
                 
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer                         
                               
Commenced at 5:02 p.m.  
  
Gerry Selk in the chair.                                                              
  
Opening Prayer: Suzanne Pierson 
  
AGENDA  
  
Tim Court moved to approve the agenda.                     Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the February 4, 2021, meeting was discussed.    


Tom Nish moved to accept the minutes of the February 4, 2021 meeting.             Carried  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin reported that the February Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 1 False Alarm, 1 MVC, 
and 1 smoke investigation. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the Authority will be using a web-based program for scheduling in Waterton. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that Magrath is doing a grain bin extraction course funded through the Alberta 
Wheat Pool and the Authority will be sending some fire fighters to take the course. 
 
Barton Lybbert & Royce Leavitt arrived at 5:06 p.m. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that he has inspected eight schools within the Westwind School Division and will be 
going to Magrath next week.  Danny has made a request to the Government to go and inspect the schools 
within the County of Warner but due to Covid the government will not approve Danny preforming the 
inspections.   
 







MINUTES CCES MEETING MARCH 4, 2021 
 


2 
 


Danny Melvin reported that about three weeks ago he received a call from Acres Fire Trucks, and they 
advised that Engine #2 has excellent trade value.  Danny is proposing that the replacement of Engine #2 
occur one year earlier due to the trade value. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that fire drills have not been reinstated due to the Covid restrictions.  The board 
inquired has to how many fire fighters have received the Covid vaccination and Danny was unsure. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the Ag Forestry has crews assembled and ready for the upcoming year. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the job postings for the Waterton contract will be posted this month. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that he spoke with Jeff Shaw, CAO of the Town of Cardston, regarding the building 
expansion and they hope to meet next week.  Danny Melvin is going to contact a vendor for a price quote to 
redo the insulation within the building. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the battery issue has been resolved on the command vehicle. 
 
Don Shideler moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                      Carried  
 
ADJOURNMENT  


Tom Nish moved to adjourn.                     Carried  


Adjournment at 5:15 p.m. 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, April 1, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County Emergency 
Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   





		MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD MARCH 4, 2021 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING

		MINUTES

		NEW BUSINESS

		ADJOURNMENT






MINUTES OF THE CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE SERVICES COMMISSION MEETING HELD 
MARCH 10, 2021 VIA ZOOM. 


Members Present: 
 
Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston    Philip Wright – Town of Milk River 
Robert Edwards – Village of Stirling   Randy Taylor – County of Warner 
Wayne Harris – Cardston County  Tyler Lindsay – Village of Warner  
Bryce Coppieters – Town of Raymond  Tanya Smith – Village of Coutts 
David Rolfson – Village of Glenwood   
       
Others Present: 
 
Abe Tinney - SEO  Lee Beazer – Operator  Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
        
Commenced at 4:30 pm   


Randy Taylor in the Chair. 


AGENDA 


Bryce Coppieters moved that the agenda be adopted as presented.     Carried 


MINUTES      


Gerry Selk moved that the minutes of the February 10, 2021 board meeting be adopted as presented. 
             Carried 
 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
Wayne Harris reported that his municipality is concerned about the motion to split the insurance 
deductible 50/50.  The municipality feels that this expense should be reflected in the requisitions. 
 
Wayne Harris inquired if the Transfer Stations have been looked at yet.  The Operator will give a report 
later in the agenda. 
 
Wayne Harris inquired as to the SEO’s contract being split between commissions.  The Chairman 
explained that it is at the early stages and nothing is set-up yet.  Once there is more information it will 
be brought forward to the board for approval. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
The SEO presented a strategy to deal with the tonnage limit.  The SEO and Operator will generate an up-
to-date transfer station diversion inventory so we can target improvements for each municipality.  The 







MINUTES CMRSWSC MEETING MARCH 10, 2021 
 


2 
Printed: 2021-03-17 


SEO advised that there is funding available from FCM that would pay up to 50% of a waste diversion 
study.  He proposed three different options that would help elevate the tonnage issue. 


Bryce Coppieters really likes the composting aspect and getting more information to each municipality.   


21-12 Bryce Coppieters moved to have the SEO look into funding and all diversion options.  Carried 


The SEO reported that Fog Dog will be coming to the Commissions next board meeting.  Fog Dog is the 
company working with Sylvan Lake right now. 


The Operator reported that 586.23 tonnes of waste were delivered to the Landfill in February 2021 and 
no waste has been diverted.   
 
The Operator advised that if the Commission diverted waste to a burning facility within Southern Alberta 
it would be roughly a $1,000 per trip. 
 
The Operator reported that Total Restoration is willing to look at some of the Transfer Stations and 
establish a standard of what repairs are required.  The board would like to know what damages are at 
each site and an approximate cost for the needed repairs. 
 
The Operator advised that JIM Equipment is willing to develop a new cell at the same price as last time.  
The Operator would like to know if the board would like to use JIM Equipment or put it out for tender. 
 
21-13 Gerry Selk moved to hire JIM Equipment to dig the new cell.    Carried 
 
The Operator reported that the packer is having some troubles.  An O ring between the transmission 
and the torque converter has failed.  Due to this the Commission loses about $200 worth of oil every 
time it is used.  The new packer should be here the first part of April.  The Operator is wondering if the 
board wants to repair the old packer with the repair cost starting at $10,000.  The board is wanting to do 
the repairs once the new packer is on-site. 
 
The Operator advised that unexpected repairs occurred to the hydraulic system on the 2017 trailer. 
 
Wayne Harris moved to approve the Operator’s report.       Carried  


Financial Statement 


The Financial Statement for January 31, 2021 were reviewed.    


Tanya Smith moved to accept the January 31, 2021 Financial Statement.     Carried 


Approval of Bills  


Bills for the month of February 2021 were reviewed.  


Philip Wright moved to approve the bills for February 2021.         Carried 


The SEO advised of the Alberta CARE Spring Seminar April 14-16, 2021 in Stony Plain, Alberta. 







MINUTES CMRSWSC MEETING MARCH 10, 2021 
 


3 
Printed: 2021-03-17 


21-14 Bryce Coppieters moved to send the SEO to the Alberta CARE Spring Seminar April 14-16, 2021. 
             Carried 


A letter from Genesis regarding their annual meeting to be held April 8, 2021 via Zoom and would like 
the attached proxy document returned to them. 


21-15 Tanya Smith moved to have Randy Taylor attend the Genesis Annual General Meeting.   Carried 
 
The SEO advised that the Leonard Carlson Land Lease Agreement is up for renewal and is needing to be 
renegotiated.  The board would like the SEO to get legal counsel and either make a deal with Leonard 
Carlson or put it out to tender. 


21-16 Gerry Selk moved to have the SEO get legal clarification and have an email sent to the board 
with the information.          Carried 


 
CORRESPONDENCE 


A letter from Stringam LLP regarding the Transfer of Land into the Commissions name.       Filed 


A letter from the Alberta Treasury Board and Finance regarding the loan for the packer and repayment 
schedule.                Filed 


ADJOURNMENT 


Tanya Smith moved meeting adjourned. 


Adjournment at 5:27 p.m.  


Next Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. via Zoom. 


 
__________________________________   
Chairman 








 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


Key Question Themes 


Path Forward 


Summer Activities  


Team Sports 


Immunizations 


Youth Recreation  


Community Event Planning  


Rapid Testing 


Municipal Elections  


 


 


COVID-19 Municipality Update 
March 10, 2021 


Total Attendees - 197 


Order 5 – 2021 


 CMOH Order 5-2021 amends Order 4-2021.  


Rehearsal & Performance  


 Order 5-2021 expands performance activities for 
adults and minors and structured recreation for 
minors.  


 Performance activities include dancing, singing, 
acting, playing a musical instrument, and any 
rehearsal or theatrical performance. Youth 
development activities such as Scouts, Girl Guides and 
4H are allowed. 


 Youth are permitted to participate indoor, rehearsal, 
training and activities with up to a maximum of 10 
peoples.  


 Adult performers and performance groups 


 Individual performers or performance groups (10 
participants maximum) can access indoor and 
outdoor facilities for rehearsals, lessons, filming or 
broadcasting virtual performances. 


 Masks are mandatory at all times, except while 
playing a wind instrument equipped with a cover 
intended to prevent droplet transmission 


 3-metre physical distancing must be maintained at all 
times. 


 


Immunizations  


 


For more information on the vaccine program see:  


https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx 


Gathering Restrictions:  


 As it currently stands, indoor social gathers are not 
permitted.  


 Outdoor gathers can occur with a maximum of 10 
people who are distanced 2 metres apart.  


Questionnaire Summary – March 3 – March 8 


 Number of responses – 31 


 Step 2 indoor fitness clarity was the most frequently 
identified top priority.  


 Other areas of high priority included:  
 High vs. Low Intensity Activity 


 Swimming Pools  
 Fitness facilities  
 Enforcement  
 Rapid Testing  


 Further question please contact Jenelle Thomas at 
jenelle.thomas@gov.ab.ca  or Navroop Tehara at 
Navroop.tehara@gov.ab.ca.  
 
 


 


 


 


 



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/5a02fc89-278b-4d14-b735-6a9658c30b99/resource/a0537cab-5685-4f4c-b65d-1b34a53d30df/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-05-2021.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx

mailto:jenelle.thomas@gov.ab.ca

mailto:Navroop.tehara@gov.ab.ca





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


Question and Answers  


Municipality Questions Response 


Path Forward  


Is it possible to get more advance notice of restriction changes? Can revised Orders 
be available when the changes are announced? 


 Revised Orders are made publicly available on 
https://open.alberta.ca/publications once they have been adopted. The 
Government of Alberta is committed to providing notice as soon as a decision is 
made relating to the Path Forward. 


Why are we not following the Path Forward hospitalization benchmarks for easing 
restrictions?     


 Decisions are made combining a variety of different pieces of information 
including both leading (cases, positivity) and lagging indicators (hospitalizations). 
Changes do not occur automatically. For each step, the Government of Alberta 
will announce what specific measures are being eased to ensure that Albertans 
are clear on any changes. When a hospitalization benchmark is reached, 
decisions will be considered for moving to the next step. If after three weeks the 
hospitalization numbers are in the range of the next hospitalization benchmark, 
and there are no significant concerns with the leading indicators, decisions will 
be made to move to the next Step.   


Will there be further adjustments made to the activities in proposed to Steps 3 and 4 
of the Path Forward?  


 Discussions are underway; as soon as a decision is made relating to the Path 
Forward it will be communicated publically. There are a variety of factors that 
affect decision-making such as, R-values, new cases, hospitalization, positivity 
rate, and the variant.    


What are the possible restrictions/requirements for pool operation in step 4?  General guidance related to restrictions will be available closer to stage 4.     


When will you consider moving the work from home order to step 3?    We are currently examining the work from home order. 


Summer Activities  


Will events with crowds of up to 500-1000 people outdoor or indoors be permitted in 
the summer or late fall?  


 Discussions are ongoing and the Government of Alberta is examining a variety of 
variables such as hospitalizations, new cases, and positivity rate. We are also 
looking at the progress on vaccinations which will continue to advance into the 
summer months.  When a decision is made, it will then be communicated 
publicly.   


How should a summer village manage beach use and crowds?  Specific decisions related to crowd management at municipal beaches are the 
jurisdiction of municipalities. Guidance documents related to outdoor events are 
pending.  


Can there be guidance related to outdoor markets, and events in the summer?  Health Emergency Operation Centre Stakeholder Relations is currently working 
with stakeholders in the festival and live performance sector to develop 
guidelines. Larger outdoor festivals and trade shows are planned for Step 4 of 
the Path Forward.   



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/publications





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


When can we get guidance for summer activities? Planning for summer activities 
should already be underway. We want to be prepared to action some type of events, 
the earlier we know the better.  


 Discussions related to summer events/activities take a variety of variables into 
consideration such as, hospitalizations, new cases, positivity rate and the variant. 
We are also looking at the progress on vaccinations which will continue to 
advance into the summer months. When a decision is made, it will be made 
publically available. Large-scale summer activities will likely fall under Step 4 of 
the Path Forward. 


Will there be guidance documents developed for summer recreation. This would 
provide some clarity on outdoor-shared facilities such as fountains and public 
washrooms.  


 Guidance documents are currently being developed. For current guidance 
documents please see https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx,.  


When will there be a clear decision on golf? With Step 3 do you anticipate golf will be 
allowed and will guidance documents be provided?  


 A decision related to both camp grounds and golf courses may potentially be part 
of Step 3.  


Is there any new guidance on garage sales?   A new range of guidance documents is being developed. Garage sales would be 
permitted outdoors, provided the operators ensure that 2m distancing is 
maintained between customers and no one enters the owner’s home (including 
the garage). Contactless payment options would be encouraged. 


Immunization  


Are vaccines available to seniors in rural communities without having to travel to 
cities?  Are there any clinics being considered? Will there also be local/rural 
vaccination sites? 


 We want to help elderly population’s access vaccination clinics in the urban 
centres. However, we are looking for a contact to coordinate logistics? 


 Are there any supports in place for rural seniors to gain access to vaccination 
centres?  Limited transportation options makes it difficult to schedule. 


 A list of participating pharmacies is available on the Alberta Blue Cross site: 
https://www.ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-immunization-program-
information.php. The 211 Alberta service can also provide more information on 
transportation options for seniors needing to access the vaccine. 


Could there be blocks of time that are set aside for rural residents to be bussed in for 
vaccine? 


 Unfortunately, block bookings are not available through AHS at this time. If there 
is a pharmacy providing bookings, a rural municipality could reach out to the 
pharmacy to ask about block bookings: https://ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-
immunization-program-information.php.  


Is there a government resource comparing and contrasting each vaccine, a "wizard" 
online to help make recommendations for particular individuals?  A process was 
implemented to help decide if an individual should be tested, now we just need 
something similar to help make a vaccination choice (especially if choices are limited 
by area). 


 Alberta Health has provided extensive information on its website 
(https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx#safety) about each of the 
approved vaccines. Anyone who is unsure of what vaccine is best for them, 
should consult with their family doctor. 


The vaccine rollout for AstraZeneca is not accessible for some individuals who are 64 
but born in 1956 (64 years old turning 65), therefore they are not allowed to access 
this particular vaccine. What vaccination programs are available to those born in 
1957? 


 The following groups are eligible to receive the AstraZeneca vaccine early, while 
supply lasts: 


o Albertans born 1957 to 1971 (turning 50 to 64) 
o First Nations, Métis and Inuit (FNMI) persons born 1972 to 1986 (turning 


35 to 49) 



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx

https://www.ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-immunization-program-information.php

https://www.ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-immunization-program-information.php

https://ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-immunization-program-information.php

https://ab.bluecross.ca/news/covid-19-immunization-program-information.php

https://www.alberta.ca/covid19-vaccine.aspx#safety





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


 People with serious chronic health conditions should consult their doctor first. 
 


 Phase 2A: this is targeted towards:  
o Albertans born 1947 to 1956 (turning 65 to 74), no matter where they 


live 
o First Nations, Métis and Inuit (FNMI) people born 1971 or earlier 


(turning 50+), no matter where they live 
o Staff and residents of licensed seniors supportive living facilities not 


included in Phase 1 


Youth Recreation  


Section 9.1 of the order 05-2021 defines "youth group recreational activity" as 
something for youth based on skill development. It appears as if we could do cultural 
programming (pottery/drawing/glass fusion type art classes) please provide 
guidance?   


 Can we resume in-person culture programming following the guidance for 
performance arts?   


 Are youth art classes permitted to resume in Step 2? 
 


 Yes, Order 05 – 2021 enables organized/structured youth recreation activities.  


 It must comply with the following restrictions: up to a maximum of 10 including 
the instructor, masked, 3m distance. These activities cannot be drop in and are 
required to be pre-booked with the same group of children coming for each 
session. 


o Ex: Scouts, Girl Guides and 4H.  


 Art Classes are permitted, as long as it is pre-booked with the same group of 
minors capped at 10 including the instructor. Masking and distancing is required.  


Community Events- Planning   


Event planners for summer events need direction.  Will there be any 
decisions/guidance on approximate outside gathering limits?  


 Decisions related to outdoor gatherings will be announced in later Steps of the 
Path Forward. The pandemic is evolving with various variables that may impact 
the Path Forward such as the variants and immunizations. More details related 
to Step 4 will be available as we get closer to the step.   


We are seeking guidance on the use of an arena for a farmer's market.  Arenas can be used for indoor farmers markets, please see the retail guidelines 
at https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx  


For community halls, is there a capacity limit on the facility?   Activities that are permitted in Step 1 and 2 can be held within a community 
centre as long as there is appropriate distancing, and masking. Indoor social 
gatherings are not permitted at this time. There is no capacity limit as long as 
groups can be properly distanced (3 metres apart and 3 metres between each 
person in the group).  


Being a small community our seniors use to gather in these premises for coffee each 
morning as part of active living. Senior want to get this activity back into their lives 
and will do whatever it takes to social distance and keep the hall clean. What stage 
will this occur?   


 Activities can occur in this community centre as long as they are permitted under 
Step 1 and 2 (low intensity exercise) of the Path Forward and as long as they 
follow public health guidelines. Indoor social gathers such as meeting to drink 
coffee is not permitted at this time.   


Community Planning- Recreation Centres  


Are low-impact fitness classes in rural areas in community centers allowed?  With no 
'gyms' residents are missing out compared to larger places.  


 Community centres and recreation centres are closed for general use drop in 
fitness to the public. However, scheduled low intensity activities can take place in 
a community centre such as barre, Pilates, stretching, tai-chi, low intensity yoga 



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


(e.g. hatha, yin), light weightlifting, indoor rock climbing. All patrons must adhere 
to masking and distancing. Individuals would also have to pre-book with the 
community centre, drop in is not permitted. 


Can we rent out our arena floor to a Lacrosse team (max 10) today under Step 2?  Yes, this is permitted.  


What standards are required to open public bathrooms?  Cleaning guidelines are available on BizConnect. https://www.alberta.ca/biz-
connect.aspx and https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-
relaunch-guidance.pdf has information on cleaning guidelines.  


When will a more complete Step 2 recreation guidance document be available?  Guidance documents continue to be updated please visit BizConnect for updated 
documents. Please see: https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx  


Can community halls be used for pancake breakfasts (observing all physical distancing 
measures) since dining in is allowed? 


 Pancake breakfasts are not permitted at this time.  


Aquatics  


When will we know if we can proceed with recertification of aquatic staff?   Recertification is explicitly enabled as an approved use of a closed space under 
previous Orders, therefore the use of aquatic centres are permitted for 
recertification of staff.  


Weddings 


As wedding season coming soon approaches we are seeking clarity on the future 
restrictions of restrictions. 


 Decisions are still being made, we will provide updated information as soon as 
we are able. Currently, wedding are able to have ceremonies with up to 10 
people. In addition, outdoor gatherings can also have a maximum of 10 people.   


Outdoor Gatherings  


Will the outdoor gathering limit be expanded as we move to Step 3 and 4? 


 Can we anticipate this upcoming in next steps?  
 Discussions are currently ongoing. As soon as a decision is made we will provide 


guidance.  


Indoor Gatherings   


Which Step will allow indoor gatherings to occur?   The Path Forward indicates Indoor social gatherings, with restrictions may 
potentially be considered in Step 3. 


Community Programs and services  


When can we see indoor programming open up for Family & Community Support 
Services Association of Alberta?  These are essential in rural communities. 


 Any services related to health, mental health, resiliency and supports are 
permitted with public health measures.  


 Under 18 recreational activities can take place indoors (performance, recreation 
and athletics) provided they following the public health measures 
 These programs cannot be drop-in in nature and must observe appropriate 


public health guidelines (masking and 3 metres distancing)   


 For more information please see: https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-
health-measures.aspx  


Places of Worship  


With retail set at 25% of fire code occupancy, is there any reason to keep places of 
worship at 15%? 


 This is being looked at as part of Step 3 and 4. 



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-relaunch-guidance.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-relaunch-guidance.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


Variants  


Is there any details relating to the Variants of Concern that can be shared online?   We are still learning about the different characteristics of the variants of 
concern. For publically available information, please see 
https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-variants.aspx.  


Do we know as of yet whether or not all of the vaccines we are using are effective on 
all variants? 


 Scientists and public health officials around the world are studying these variant 
strains, including how the current vaccines may help protect against them. The 
Government of Alberta are closely monitoring the situation. 


How many cases of the variant are currently active? Currently, Alberta Health is processing variants data manually and continues to 
work with the labs to automate this process which would allow the information 
to be available. Work on this continues. Variant numbers will now be updated 
twice every day of the week at www.alberta.ca/covid-19-alberta-
data.aspx#jumplinks-1.  


Team Sports   


When will sport (Minor and Senior) be permitted?      Seniors recreation sport may potentially be permitted under Step 3 of the Path 
Forward.   


 Minor Sports will be closely examined.  


 Members of collegiate sports or members of a university athletic program are 
permitted to engage in training with a maximum of 10 individuals. Training 
includes: lessons, practice, physical conditioning games are not permitted.  
Individuals must be physically distanced (3 metres indoors, 2 metres outdoors). 
Participants must be masked at all times, except during the training activity. 
Coaches and trainers must remain masked at all times. 


Rapid Testing  


How can municipalities apply for Rapid tests?  Email rapidtesting@gov.ab.ca. Further information will be posted online in the 
upcoming weeks.  


Municipal Elections 


What guidance is available for upcoming municipal elections?   Discussions are underway on guidelines for elections. The following guidance is 
available on BizConnect https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-
relaunch-guidance-canvassing-campaigning.pdf  


Testing  


When will there be rural testing sites?  There are a variety of testing sites across Alberta in both rural and urban 
communities. Please see: www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17058.aspx  
for more information.  


Museums  


Our museum has a large meeting room area. Is the Museum permitted to start 
renting this space out for activities? If so, are there specific numbers to follow, or is it 
based on room distancing/barriers? 


 Museums can rent out this space to activities that are permitted under Step 1 
and 2 under the Path Forward.  


 The space must comply with the distancing and activity requirements.  



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-variants.aspx

http://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-alberta-data.aspx#jumplinks-1

http://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-alberta-data.aspx#jumplinks-1

mailto:rapidtesting@gov.ab.ca

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-canvassing-campaigning.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-canvassing-campaigning.pdf

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17058.aspx





 


www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx  


AH-operations@gov.ab.ca 


Classification: Public 


 For example, low intensity fitness is capped at a maximum of 10 people 3 
metres apart masked.  


Hospitality  


When can we expect the “household” seating requirement to be amended for in-
person dining?  


 Discussions are on-going with key stakeholders in the hospitality industry. The 
current regulations state that 6 people per table maximum – individuals must be 
from the same household or the 2 close contacts for a person living alone. 


Feedback from Municipalities  


 Can you please expand the amount of characters for the open field questions? 


 Can we please focus on high-level municipal topics as opposed to personal issues and  


 The format of the meeting is improving. The brief update followed by themed questions is effective. 


 Can we please expand the time given to the meeting? Maybe look at 45 minutes?  


 Can more specific guidance documents be develop as we move towards summer?  


 


 



http://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx






VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
March 11, 2021 Minutes 


 


Public Hearing 
 Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood Community 
Hall on March 11, 2021 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance: Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors 
Barton Lybbert and Gerry Carter.  Rusty Clark attended via Zoom, at 7:06 PM. 
 
Officials: Chief Administrative Officer Carrie Kinahan was in attendance and 
Administrative Assistant Marilee Campbell. 


 
 


 


 
Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes March 11, 2021 Initials: Page 1 of 1 


 


 
1. Called to Order 
 
 
2. Prayer 
 
3. Agenda Adoption 
2021.03.028 
 
 
4. Delegations: 
4 a) Oldman River 
Regional Services 
Commission (ORRSC)-
Ryan Dyck & Hailey 
Winder 
 
4 b) Wayne Smith -MDP 
 
4 c) Wayne Layton 
representing Phillip 
Layton 
 
4 d) Open Mic 
 
4 e) ORRSC – Replied to 
questions and 
comments 
 
5. Closed Meeting 
 
Adjournment:  
Moved to Regular 
Council Meeting 
2021.03.029 
 


Mayor Elias called the March 11, 2021 Public Hearing Meeting to 
order at 7:01 PM 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson  
 
 
Deputy Mayor MOVED to adopt the agenda as amended. (Add 2. 
Prayer & postponed 3. to regular meeting)               


Carried 
 
 
 
Presentation on Municipal Development Plan  
 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to adjourn Public Hearing and move to Regular 
Council the meeting at 7:58 PM. 


Carried 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
_____________________________________________ 


Chief Administrative Officer 
  


 








VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
March 11, 2021 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on March 11, 2021 scheduled at 7:30 PM. 
 
In attendance: Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors 
Barton Lybbert and Gerry Carter were in attendance; Rusty Clark attended via 
Zoom. 
 
Officials: Chief Administrative Officer Carrie Kinahan was in attendance and 
Administrative Assistant Marilee Campbell. 


 
 


 


 
Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes March 11, 2021 Initials: Page 1 of 2 


 


 
1. Called to Order 
 
2. Prayer 
 
3. Agenda Adoption 
2021.03.030 
 
 
 
4. Minutes Adoption 
2021.03.031 
 
 
5. Delegations: 
5 a) ORRSC-Municipal 
Development Plan 
(MDP) 
 
6. Discussion and/or 
Actions: 
6 a) Bylaw #257-2021 
Municipal Development 
Plan (MDP) 
2021.03.032 
 
 
 
2021.03.033 
 
 
 
6 c) Bylaw #239-2021 
Emergency 
Management 
2021.03.034 
 
 
7. & 8. Council & CAO 
Reports 
Mayor Elias 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
Councillor Carter 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
Councillor Clark 
 
CAO Report 


Mayor Elias called the March 11, 2021 Regular Council Meeting to 
order at 7:58 PM 
 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adopt the agenda as amended;   
(5 a) Add ORRSC representative and 6 b) was deleted).          


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 2021.02.11 
Regular Council Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to approve Second Reading of Bylaw #257-2021 
Municipal Development Plan (MDP). 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve Third & Final Reading of 
Bylaw #257-2021 Municipal Development Plan (MDP). 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the bylaw to the April regular 
meeting. 


Carried 
 
 


• Saputo and Alberta Southwest. 
 


• Chinook Arch, Chief Mountain Regional Solid waste. 
 


• Chinook Foundation 
 


• Cardston County Emergency Services 
 


• Family and Community Support Services 
 


• CAO Report presented as outlined in the agenda 







Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes March 11, 2021 Initials: Page 2 of 2 
 


 
2021.03.035 
 
 
 
9. Financial Reports 
9 a) 9 b) 9c) 
 
 
 
 
2021.03.036 
 
 
 
10. Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021.03.037 
 
11. Closed Meeting 
2021.03.038 
 
 
 
 
2021.03.039 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021.03.040 
 
 
Adjournment 
2021.01.041 
 


 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the Councillor & CAO reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 


 
Council reviewed the following  
9 a) Accounts Payable February 2021 (20210031-20210064) 
9 b) Budget VS Actual Operating & Capital Report, February 2021. 
9 c) Bank Reconciliation for January and February 2021. 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the Financial Reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 


a) Budget 2021 Letter to Chief Elected Officials. 
b) Budget 2021 Media Speaking Points. 
c) Ltr to Premier_Protection of Rocky Mountain_Coal 


Policy_2021-02-17 
d) 2021-02 Bulletin Alberta SW 
e) 2021-03 Bulletin Alberta SW 
f) Alberta Police Interim Advisory Board Feb 2021 


Quarterly Report 
g) Policing Concerns 
h) JTI Implementation Update Bulletin 210217 
i) M&R February 2021 minutes 
j) Mayors and Reeves February 2021 
k) Cmrswa Minutes 2-21 
l) OWC Update to Mayor & Reeves March 2021 
m) Minister of Justice & Solicitor General- Letter of 


Request concerning RCMP vs. APP March 1, 2021  
n) Letter from MLA Hunter 
o) Q&A Fact Sheet 02.05 
p) Disaster Recovery Program Changes 


 
Mayor Elias MOVED to accept the correspondence as information. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 9:19 PM to 
discuss Land, Legal or Labour Matters as per Section 24(b)(i) of the 
FOIP Act. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 
9:40 PM. 


Carried 
 
The Regular Council Meeting resumed at 9:42 PM allowing for the 
public to rejoin the meeting. 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to instruct administration to send a letter 
to Saputo asking for more information regarding closure. 


Carried 
 
Deputy David Rolfson MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:44 PM. 


Carried 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Mayor Elias Chair 


 
_____________________________________________ 


Chief Administrative Officer 
  


 





































VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


Financial Statements


Year Ended December 31, 2020







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Index to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Page


MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 1


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 2 - 3


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4


Consolidated Statement of Operations 5


Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 6


Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7


Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Schedule 1) 8


Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule 2) 9


Schedule of Property and Other Taxes (Schedule 3) 10


Schedule of Government Transfers (Schedule 4) 11


Schedule of Consolidated Expenses by Object (Schedule 5) 12


Schedule of Segmented Disclosure (Schedule 6) 13


Notes to Financial Statements 14 - 19







MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING


The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Village of Glenwood (the
Village).


Theses consolidated financial statements have been prepared from information provided by management. These
statements include certain amounts based on management's estimates and judgments.  Management has
determined such amounts based on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented
fairly in all material respects.


The Village maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls that are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and that the Village's assets
are properly accounted for and adequately safeguarded.


The elected Council of the Village is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibility for
financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financial statements. Council
meets periodically with management and the external auditors to review significant accounting, reporting and
internal control matters.  Following its review of the financial statements and discussions with the auditors, the
Council approves the financial statements.  The Council approves the appointment of the external auditors and
reviews the monthly financial reports.


The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Shawn Cook Professional Corporation, Chartered
Professional Accountants, the external auditor, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
on behalf of the Council, residents and ratepayers of the Village. Shawn Cook Professional Corporation has full
and free access to the Council.


 Carrie Kinahan, CAO


Glenwood, AB


1







INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT


To the Members of Council of the Village of Glenwood


Opinion


We have audited the financial statements of Village of Glenwood (the Village), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in
net  financial  assets  and  cash  flows  for  the  year  then  ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.


In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Village as at December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations, change in its net financial assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.


Basis for Opinion


We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under  those  standards  are  further  described  in  the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Village in accordance with ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.


Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.


In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Village's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Village or  to  cease  operations,  or  has  no  realistic
alternative but to do so.


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village's financial reporting process.


Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.


As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


(continues)


2







Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Village of Glenwood (continued)


 l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.


 l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Village’s internal control.


 l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.


 l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Village’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on  the  audit  evidence  obtained  up  to  the  date  of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Village to cease to continue as a going concern.


 l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.


We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.


Lethbridge, Alberta
Chartered Professional Accountants


3







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2020


2020 2019


FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments (Note 2) $ 486,664 $ 408,370
Taxes and grants in places of taxes receivable (Note 3) 34,055 40,179
Trade and other receivable (Note 3) 82,173 88,210


602,892 536,759


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 79,013 62,653
Deferred revenue (Note 4) 76,981 72,000


155,994 134,653


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 446,898 402,106


NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 2) 3,392,632 3,276,957
Inventory for consumption 4,978 6,311
Prepaid expenses - 1,525


3,397,610 3,284,793


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Schedule 1 and Note 7) $ 3,844,508 $ 3,686,899


CONTINGENCIES (Note 10)


Approved on behalf of Council:


_____________________________ Councilor


_____________________________ Councilor


4







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Budget
(Unaudited) 2020 2019


REVENUE
Net municipal taxes (Schedule 3) $ 245,154 $ 245,774 $ 244,841
User fees and sales of goods 185,155 211,523 205,591
Pioneer Parlour revenue 33,000 44,389 45,806
Government transfers for operating (Schedule 4) 35,107 62,147 34,147
Franchise and concession contracts 18,000 12,083 18,354
Penalties and costs of taxes 4,500 4,329 2,116
Other revenue 5,900 4,225 2,656
Investment income 3,500 3,307 5,804
Licenses and permits 440 634 865


530,756 588,411 560,180


EXPENSES
Legislative 20,500 9,344 16,849
Administration 208,370 197,800 202,738
Bylaw enforcement 5,585 5,585 -
Fire services 32,799 23,549 23,314
Public Works 109,998 104,292 105,742
Wastewater treatment and disposal 8,750 13,962 6,058
Water supply and distribution 227,853 197,767 185,775
Waste management 12,737 22,338 10,919
Parks and recreation 37,930 33,970 32,603
Cemeteries and crematoriums 6,850 9,357 4,851
Culture - libraries, museums, halls 42,796 37,315 40,342
Pioneer Parlour 33,000 48,208 51,872


747,168 703,487 681,063


DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
BEFORE OTHER (216,412) (115,076) (120,883)


OTHER
Government transfers for capital (Schedule 4) 340,850 272,685 97,717


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES 124,438 157,609 (23,166)


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,686,899 3,686,899 3,710,065


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR $ 3,811,337 $ 3,844,508 $ 3,686,899


5







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Budget
(Unaudited) 2020 2019


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES $ 124,438 $ 157,609 $ (23,166)


Amortization of tangible capital assets 224,400 180,763 178,645
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (340,850) (296,438) (93,217)


(116,450) (115,675) 85,428
Use of prepaid expenses - 1,525 (1,525)
Decrease (increase) in inventory for consumption - 1,333 (3,886)


- 2,858 (5,411)


(116,450) (112,817) 80,017


INCREASE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 7,988 44,792 56,851


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 402,106 402,106 345,255


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 410,094 $ 446,898 $ 402,106


6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2020


2020 2019


OPERATING
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ 157,609 $ (23,166)
Non-cash items included in excess (deficiency) of revenues over


expenses
Amortization of tangible capital assets 180,763 178,645


338,372 155,479


Changes in non-cash working capital:
Taxes and grants in places of taxes receivable 6,124 (12,786)
Trade and other receivable 6,037 8,306
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,360 22,480
Deferred revenue 4,981 1,457
Inventory for consumption 1,333 (3,886)
Prepaid expenses 1,525 (1,525)


36,360 14,046


374,732 169,525


CAPITAL
Purchase of tangible capital assets (296,438) (93,217)


CHANGE IN CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS DURING
THE YEAR 78,294 76,308


CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 408,370 332,062


CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS, END OF YEAR (Note 2) $ 486,664 $ 408,370


7







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Schedule 1)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Unrestricted
Surplus


Restricted
Surplus


Equity in
Tangible


Capital Assets 2020 2019


BALANCE, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR $ 350,180 $ 59,762 $ 3,276,957 $ 3,686,899 $ 3,710,065


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 157,609 - - 157,609 (23,166)
Unrestricted funds designated for future use (61,111) 61,111 - - -
Current year funds used for tangible capital assets (296,438) - 296,438 - -
Annual amortization expense 180,763 - (180,763) - -
Change in accumulated surplus (19,177) 61,111 115,675 3,844,508 3,686,899


BALANCE, END OF THE YEAR $ 331,003 $ 120,873 $ 3,392,632 $ 3,844,508 $ 3,686,899


8







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule 2)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Land
Land


Improvements Buildings
Engineered
Structures


Machinery &
Equipment 2020 2019


COST
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 97,757 $ 322,566 $ 946,024 $ 6,468,081 $ 386,469 $ 8,220,897 $ 8,127,680


Acquisition of tangible capital assets - - 3,490 282,209 10,739 296,438 93,217
Disposal of tangible capital assets - - - (147,103) - (147,103) -


BALANCE, END OF YEAR 97,757 322,566 949,514 6,603,187 397,208 8,370,232 8,220,897


ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - 58,216 509,468 4,137,947 238,309 4,943,940 4,765,295


Annual amortization - 12,903 18,372 126,169 23,319 180,763 178,645
Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - (147,103) - (147,103) -


BALANCE, END OF YEAR - 71,119 527,840 4,117,013 261,628 4,977,600 4,943,940


NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS $ 97,757 $ 251,447 $ 421,674 $ 2,486,174 $ 135,580 $ 3,392,632 $ 3,276,957


2019 NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS $ 97,757 $ 264,350 $ 436,556 $ 2,330,134 $ 148,160 $ 3,276,957


9







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Property and Other Taxes (Schedule 3)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Budget
(Unaudited) 2020 2019


TAXATION
Real property taxes $ 308,129 $ 306,505 $ 308,050
Linear property taxes 14,000 16,244 14,004


322,129 322,749 322,054


REQUISITIONS
Alberta School Foundation Fund 71,146 71,146 71,342
Seniors foundation 5,829 5,829 5,871


76,975 76,975 77,213


NET MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAXES $ 245,154 $ 245,774 $ 244,841


10







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Government Transfers (Schedule 4)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Budget
(Unaudited) 2020 2019


TRANSFERS FOR OPERATING
Provincial Government $ 35,107 $ 62,147 $ 34,147


TRANSFERS FOR CAPITAL
Provincial Government 340,850 263,708 96,217
Other Local Government - 8,977 1,500


340,850 272,685 97,717


TOTAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS $ 375,957 $ 334,832 $ 131,864


11







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Consolidated Expenses by Object (Schedule 5)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Budget
(Unaudited) 2020 2019


CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES BY OBJECT
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 224,850 $ 235,768 $ 234,108
Contracted and general services 128,580 142,517 119,646
Materials, goods and utilities 119,400 106,719 113,288
Transfers to local boards and agencies 47,188 35,967 32,647
Bank charges and short-term interest 2,750 1,753 2,729
Amortization of tangible capital assets 224,400 180,763 178,645


$ 747,168 $ 703,487 $ 681,063


12







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Schedule of Segmented Disclosure (Schedule 6)
Year Ended December 31, 2020


General
Government


Protective
Services


Transportation
Services


Environmental
Services


Planning and
development


Recreation
and culture Total


REVENUE
Net municipal taxes $ 245,774 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 245,774
User fees and sales of goods 3,245 - 417 197,805 - 10,056 211,523
Government transfers 62,147 - 165,385 107,300 - - 334,832
Other revenues 8,195 - - 359 634 44,389 53,577
Franchise and concession contracts 12,083 - - - - - 12,083
Investment income 3,307 - - - - - 3,307


334,751 - 165,802 305,464 634 54,445 861,096


EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 120,018 150 42,925 37,698 - 34,977 235,768
Contracted and general services 65,416 1,185 2,564 44,858 7,115 21,379 142,517
Materials, goods, supplies and utilities 11,241 5,738 22,555 31,391 - 35,794 106,719
Transfers to local boards - 11,711 - 16,928 - 7,328 35,967
Bank charges and short-term interest 1,753 - - - - - 1,753


198,428 18,784 68,044 130,875 7,115 99,478 522,724


NET REVENUE BEFORE AMORTIZATION 136,323 (18,784) 97,758 174,589 (6,481) (45,033) 338,372


Amortization expense 8,716 10,350 36,248 103,192 - 22,257 180,763


NET REVENUE $ 127,607 $ (29,134) $ 61,510 $ 71,397 $ (6,481) $ (67,290) $ 157,609


13







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


The consolidated financial statements of the Village of Glenwood (the Village) are the representations of
management prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments
established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Village are as follows:


Reporting Entity


The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures, changes in
fund balances and change in financial position of the reporting entity. This entity is comprised of the
municipal operations plus all of the organizations that are owned or controlled by the Village and are,
therefore, accountable to the Council for the administration of their financial affairs and resources.


The schedule of taxes levied also includes requisitions for education, health, social and other external
organizations that are not part of the municipal reporting entity.


Basis of Accounting


The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred
and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services and/or the legal obligation to pay.


Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted for
as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.


Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties pursuant to
legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be used for certain programs, in the completion of
specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition, certain user charges and fees are
collected for which the related services have yet to be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period
when the related expenses are incurred, services performed or the tangible capital assets are acquired.


Use of Estimates


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Where measurement uncertainty
exists, the financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.


Investments


Investments are recorded at cost less any provision for other than temporary impairment.


Tax Revenue


Tax revenues are recognized when the tax has been authorized by bylaw and the taxable event has
occurred.


Requisitions operate as a flow through and are excluded from municipal revenue.


(continues)


14







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


Government Transfers


Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are not the result of
an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial
return.


Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which events
giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been
met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be determined.


Non-Financial Assets


Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision
of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the
normal course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during the year, together with the excess
of revenues over expenses, provides the consolidated Change in Net Financial Assets (Debt) for the year.


i. Tangible Capital Assets


Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less
residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life as follows:
                                                                                Years
Land improvements                                               15 - 25
Buildings                                                               25 - 50
Engineered structures
     Water system                                                     20 - 75
     Wastewater system                                            35 - 75
     Other engineered structures                                5 - 75
Machinery and equipment                                       5 - 20


A full year of amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and no amortization is charged in
the year of disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.


iii. Leases


Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.


iv. Inventories


Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost.


15







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


2. CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS


2020 2019


Cash $ 486,664 $ 408,370


The Village has a demand line of credit with ATB Financial with an authorized limit of $100,000 which
bears interest at 3.45%, secured by a general security agreement.


Included in cash and temporary investments is a restricted amount of $76,981 (2019 - $72,000) received from
various grant programs which are held exclusively for approved projects (Note 4).


3. RECEIVABLES
2020 2019


Property taxes
Current taxes and grants in place of taxes $ 23,669 $ 33,426
Arrears taxes 10,386 6,753


34,055 40,179


Trade and other receivables
Grants 37,931 65,084
Goods and Services Tax (GST) 20,976 10,172
Miscellaneous 16,172 12,709
Utilities 7,094 245


82,173 88,210


4. DEFERRED REVENUE
2020 2019


Alberta Community Partnership $ 68,500 $ 68,500
Municipal Operating Support Transfer 6,458 -
Fortis Grant 1,023 2,500
EMPP Grant 1,000 1,000


$ 76,981 $ 72,000


16







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


5. DEBT LIMITS


Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by Alberta
Regulation 255/00 for the Village be disclosed as follows:


2020 2019


Total debt limit $ 882,617 $ 840,270
Total debt - -
Amount of debt limit unused 882,617 840,270


Debt servicing limit 147,103 140,045
Debt servicing - -
Amount of debt servicing limit unused 147,103 140,045


The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the Village (as defined in Alberta Regulation 255/00) and
the debt service limit is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring debt beyond these limitations
requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta
Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities that could be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The
calculation taken alone does not represent the financial stability of the Village. Rather, the financial
statements must be interpreted as a whole.


6. EQUITY IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2020 2019


Tangible capital assets (Schedule 2) $ 8,370,232 $ 8,220,897
Accumulated amortization (Schedule 2) (4,977,600) (4,943,940)


$ 3,392,632 $ 3,276,957


7. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS


Accumulated surplus consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in tangible capital assets as
follows:


2020 2019


   Unrestricted surplus $ 331,003 $ 350,180
Restricted surplus 120,873 59,762


   Equity in tangible capital assets 3,392,632 3,276,957


$ 3,844,508 $ 3,686,899


17







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


8. SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE


The Village provides a range of services to its ratepayers. For each reported segment, revenues and expenses
represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the segment and amounts that are allocated on a
reasonable basis. The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.


Refer to the Schedule of Segmented Disclosure (Schedule 6).


9. SALARY AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE


Disclosure of salaries and benefits for Village officials, the chief administrative officer and designated officers
as required by Alberta Regulation 313/2000 is as follows:


Salary (1)
Benefits &


Allowances (2) 2020 2019


Mayor Elias $ 900 $ -  $ 900 $ 1,200
Councilor Carter 1,700 3 1,703 1,900
Councilor Clark 350 - 350 -
Councilor Lybbert, B. 950 - 950 1,050
Councilor Lybbert, M. 250 - 250 2,350
Councilor Rolfson 1,850 8 1,858 2,650


Chief Administrative Officer -
Campbell 24,258 6,199 30,457 54,974
Chief Administrative Officer - Kinahan 22,109 5,065 27,174 -
Designated Officer - 1 position 7,910 - 7,910 7,928


(1) Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum payments, gross honoraria and any
other direct cash remuneration.


(2) Employer’s share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees
including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage, group life insurance, accidental
disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short-term disability plans, professional
memberships and tuition, if any.


Benefits and allowances figures also include the employer’s share of the costs of additional taxable
benefits including special leave with pay, car and travel allowances, conferences, and memberships, if
any.


18







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020


10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES


The Village is a member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange (MUNIX). Under the terms of the
membership, the Village could become liable for its proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the
funds held by the exchange. Any liability incurred would be accounted for as a current transaction in the year
the losses are determined.


Employees of the Village are allowed to accrue sick leave up to a maximum of 30 days. As at December 31,
2020 the amount of accumulated sick leave was $10,747 (2019 - $14,649). The total amount was not recorded
in the financial statements as there is no certainty the full amount will be used. The amount of accumulated
sick leave is not paid out to employees of the Village when they leave their position.


11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS


The Village’s financial instruments consist of cash and temporary investments, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. It is management’s opinion that the Village is not exposed to significant
interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.
The Village is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables and trade and
other receivables. Credit risk arises from the possibility that taxpayers and entities to which the Village
provides services may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. The large
number and diversity of taxpayers and customers minimizes the credit risk.


Unless otherwise noted, the carrying value of the financial instruments approximates fair value.


12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS


The outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specifically identified as "COVID-19", has resulted in
governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures,
which include the implementation of travel bans, self imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have
caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown. Global equity markets
have experienced significant volatility and weakness. Government and central banks have reacted with
significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions. The duration and
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the efficacy of the government and central
bank interventions. It is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of these developments and the
impact on the financial results and conditions of the Village.


13. COMPARATIVE FIGURES


Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.  The
changes do not affect prior year earnings.


14. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Council and Management have approved these financial statements.


19








 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 1 of 6 


 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
BYLAW # 239-2021 


 
Cardston County Regional Emergency Management  


Partnership Bylaw 
 
A BYLAW OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ESTABLISHING THE CARDSTON COUNTY REGIONAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PARTNERSHIP 
ORGANIZATION 
 
WHEREAS the Village of Glenwood is responsible for the direction and control of its emergency 
response and is required under the Emergency Management Act, Chapter E-6.8, RSA 2000, to 
appoint an Emergency Advisory Committee and to establish and maintain a Municipal Emergency 
Management Agency. 


AND WHEREAS it is desirable in the public interest, and in the interests of public safety, that such 
a committee be appointed, and such an agency be established and maintained to carry out 
Council’s statutory powers and obligations under the said Emergency Management Act. 


AND WHEREAS it is desirable in the public interest, and in the interests of public safety that a 
regional emergency management organization be formed to coordinate a regional emergency 
approach and programs. 


AND WHEREAS the municipalities of the Towns of Cardston and Glenwood, the Villages of 
Glenwood and Hill Spring and Cardston County wish to establish a Regional Emergency Advisory 
Committee, and a Regional Emergency Management Agency, led by a Regional Director of 
Emergency Management. 


NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE 
OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:  


1. This Bylaw may be cited as the “Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Partnership 
Bylaw”. 


 
2. In this Bylaw the following words and terms shall have the following meanings: 


a. “Act” means the Emergency Management Act, Chapter E-6.8, RSA 2000; 
b. “Agency” means the Regional Emergency Management Agency; 
c. “Council” means the Council of the Village of Glenwood; 
d. “Cardston County Regional Emergency Advisory Committee”, (the Committee) means 


the Regional Emergency Advisory Committee of the Cardston County Regional 
Emergency Management Partnership as established by an agreement between and the 
bylaws of the Parties; 







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 2 of 6 


 


e. “Cardston County Regional Emergency Coordination Centre” (the Centre) means the 
primary and backup Regional Emergency Coordination Centre as established and 
maintained in accordance with the Regional Emergency Management Plan; 


f. “Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Agency”, (the Agency) means 
the Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Agency as established by an 
agreement between and the bylaws of the respective municipal councils of the Parties; 


g. “Cardston County Regional Director of Emergency Management” (the Regional 
Director) means as per the Alberta Emergency Management Act November 2018. The 
Regional Director is responsible to lead the Agency in the preparation for, response to 
and recovery from a disaster or emergency; 


h. “Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Partnership” (the Partnership) means 
the Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Partnership as established by 
agreement between and the bylaws of the respective municipal councils of the Parties; 


i. “Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Plan”, (the Plan) means the 
Cardston County Regional Emergency Management Plan to co-ordinate the 
preparation for, response to and recovery from an emergency or disaster. 


j. “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer or their designate as appointed by 
Council.  


k. “Deputy Director of Emergency Management” (DDEM) means the person responsible for the 
duties of the Director of Emergency Management in their absence; 


l. “Director of Emergency Management” (DEM) means the Chief Administrative Officer or other 
person appointed by resolution of Council, who shall be responsible for the municipality’s 
Emergency Management Program; 


m. “Disaster” means an event that results in serious harm to the safety, health or welfare of 
people, or in widespread damage to property; 


n. “Emergency” means an event that requires prompt coordination of action or special 
regulation of persons or property to protect the safety, health or welfare of people or to limit 
damage to property; 


o. “Emergency Coordination Centre” (ECC) means the location that functions as a point of 
coordination, addressing the needs of the municipality or the Cardston County Regional 
Emergency Management Partnership Region as a whole, exercising the authority of the local 
officials, as well as anticipating and supporting the needs of one (1) or more incident sites; 


p. “Local Authority” means, where a municipality has a council within the meaning of the 
Municipal Government Act, Chapter M-26, RSA 2000, that council; 


q. “Minister” means the Minister charged with administration of the Act; and 
r. “Parties” means the Villages of Glenwood and Hill Spring, Cardston County, and the Towns of 


Cardston and Magrath. 
 


3. Council agrees through the Partnership, to establish the Committee as the agent of Council, to 
carry out its statutory powers and obligation under the Act.   
 


4. Council agrees through the Partnership, to establish the Committee to guide the creation, 
implementation and evaluation of the Regional Emergency Management Program and the Plan, 
related plans and programs, and to advise Council on the development of the aforementioned 
plans and programs.  







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 3 of 6 


 


 
5. Council will retain the power to declare, renew or terminate a State of Local Emergency (SOLE) for 


any incident that is occurring or may occur within the jurisdiction of the Village of Glenwood. 
 


6. The Committee shall: 
a. act as the Committee for all parties to the Partnership; 
b. consist of municipal councillors appointed by each of the Parties, with each municipality 


appointing one (1) primary member, each of whom shall have one (1) vote regarding any 
matter coming before the committee; 


c. each municipality shall also appoint one (1) alternate member to the committee who shall be 
permitted to vote in the absence or in place of the primary member; 


d. elect from the membership, a Chairperson.  The Chairperson’s term will be two (2) years; 
e. provide guidance, direction and approve the activities of the Agency and the Regional Director 


with regards to the development and implementation of the Partnership; 
f. use consensus decision making wherever possible. A minimum of four (4) members from five 


(5) partner municipalities shall constitute a quorum; 
g. meet one to two times per year; 
h. review the Regional Emergency Management Program and Plan and related plans and 


programs on an annual basis; and 
i. advise Council, duly assembled, on the status of the Regional Emergency Management 


Program and related plans and programs at least once each year. 
 


7. Council shall: 
a. by resolution, appoint one (1) of its members to serve on the Committee and at least one (1) 


member as an alternate; 
b. provide for the payment of expenses of its member(s) of the Committee; 
c. ensure that emergency plans and programs are prepared to address potential emergencies or 


disasters within Cardston County and the Partnership Region; 
d. approve the Plan, the Regional Emergency Plans and Programs as they related to the Village of 


Glenwood and the Partnership Region; 
e. review the status of the Regional Emergency Management Plan and related plans and 


programs at least once a year; and 
f. by resolution appoint the CAO, or other person, as the Director of Emergency Management 


(DEM) for the Village of Glenwood. 
g. by resolution appoint someone as the Deputy Director of Emergency Management (DDEM) of 


the Village of Glenwood. 
 


8. Council agrees through the Partnership, to establish the Agency to act as the agent of Council to 
carry out its statutory powers and obligations under the Act.  


 
9. Council may: 


a. by bylaw that is not advertised, borrow, levy, appropriate and expend all sums required for its 
share of the operation of the Committee and the Agency; and 







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 4 of 6 


 


b. enter into agreements with and make payments or grants, or both, to persons or organizations 
for the provision of services in the development or implementation of emergency plans or 
programs including mutual aid plans and programs. 
 


10. Council agrees through the Partnership to have a Regional Director. The Regional Director is 
responsible to lead the Agency in the preparation for, response to and recovery from a disaster or 
emergency. 


 
11. The Agency shall be comprised of the following voting persons: 


a. the CAO of each municipality which is a member of the Partnership; 
b. in the absence of the CAO, the DEM or DDEM of each municipality which is a member of the 


Partnership;  
c. the Regional Director, and 
d. in the event of a tie vote, the motion will be considered to be defeated. 


 
12. The Agency may request that the following persons may join or advise the Agency for each period 


of time the Agency deems appropriate: 
a. Non-Commissioned Officer in charge of RCMP or designate; 
b. Fire Chiefs or Designates; 
c. Enforcement Services Manager or designate; 
d. Emergency Public Information Officers or designates;  
e. Alberta Health Services representatives or designates; 
f. School Superintendent or designate; 
g. Emergency Social Services Managers or designates; 
h. Representative(s) from adjacent municipalities which have entered in the Agency; 
i. Representatives from local business; 
j. Representatives from local industry or industrial associations; 
k. Representatives from Alberta Municipal Affairs; 
l. Representatives from local utility companies; and 
m. Anybody else who might serve as useful purpose in the preparation or implementation of the 


Plan. 
 


13. The Agency shall: 
a. act as the Agency for all parties to the Partnership program; 
b. use the command, control and coordination system prescribed by the Managing Director of 


the Alberta Emergency Management Agency at all times; 
c. guide the creation, implementation and evaluation of the Regional Emergency Management 


Plans and programs for the Partnership Region; 
d. meet on a quarterly basis; 
e. provide an update on the agency’s review of the emergency plan to the Committee on a yearly 


basis.  
f. determine the direction of the Agency and any of its sub groups; 
g. coordinate all emergency services and other resources used in an emergency; 







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 5 of 6 


 


h. ensure that in the event of an emergency, an individual or group of individuals is designated 
under the Plan to act, on behalf of the Agency.  The designation of an individual or group of 
individuals to act on behalf of the Agency shall be guided by the following: 
 


i. In the event of an emergency/incident affecting only one municipality, the local DEM 
will serve as the local Incident Commander in the local Emergency Coordination Center 
(ECC). This ECC will be supported by resources of the Agency as required including the 
activation of the Centre; and  
 


ii. In the event of an emergency/incident, resulting in the activation of the Centre within 
or affecting more than one municipality within the Partnership Region, the Regional 
Director will serve as Incident Commander for the emergency/incident. As the DEMs 
from the affected municipalities arrive at the Centre, the Regional Director and local 
DEMs will jointly decide who will take the lead role in the Centre.  
 


i. ensure someone is designated to discharge the responsibilities specified in paragraphs e, f, 
and g of this Section. 
 


14. In the event of an emergency entirely within the boundaries of and only affecting the Village of 
Glenwood, the authority and powers to declare or renew a state of local emergency under the Act, 
the authority and powers specified in Section 15 of this Bylaw, and the requirement specified in 
Section 19 of this Bylaw are hereby delegated to the Mayor and any one (1) Councillor OR any two 
(2) Councillors. This municipal committee may at any time when it is satisfied that an emergency 
exists or may exist, by resolution, make a declaration of a State of Local Emergency (SOLE). 


 
15. When a State of Local Emergency (SOLE) is declared, the Village of Glenwood shall: 


a. ensure that the declaration identifies the nature of the emergency and the area in which it 
exists; 


b. cause the details of the declaration to be published immediately by such means of 
communication considered most likely to notify the population of the area affected; and 


c. forward a copy of the declaration to the Minister forthwith. 
 


16. When Village of Glenwood has declared a State of Local Emergency (SOLE), the county may, for the 
duration of that State of Local Emergency, do all acts and take all necessary proceedings including 
those in Section 19 of the Act.  


 
17. During the response to an emergency and if the municipal CAO or DEM is not available, the 


Regional Director will assume the role of the municipal DEM and will have the same emergency 
financial spending powers as the municipal DEM. 
  


18. In accordance with Section 28 of the Act, no action lies against a Local Authority or person acting 
under the Local Authority’s direction or authorization for anything done or omitted to be done in 
good faith while carrying out a power or duty under this Act or in the regulations during a state of 
local emergency. 







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 239-2021 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 6 of 6 


 


 
19. In accordance with Section 535(1)(2) of the Municipal Government Act, councillors, council 


committee members, municipal officers (CAO and employees) and volunteer workers are not liable 
for loss or damage caused by anything said or done or omitted to be done in good faith in the 
performance or intended performance of their functions, duties, or powers under the Municipal 
Government Act or any other enactment. 
 


20. When the Village of Glenwood is of the opinion that an emergency no longer exists, the Village of 
Glenwood, shall, by resolution of a quorum of council, terminate the declaration.  


 
21. A declaration of a State of Local Emergency (SOLE) is considered terminated and ceases to be of 


any force or effect when: 
a. a resolution is passed under Section 18; 
b. a period of seven (7) days has lapsed since it was declared, unless it is renewed by resolution; 
c. at the end of 90 days if the declaration is in respect of a pandemic; 
d. the Lieutenant Governor in Council makes and order for a state of emergency for the same 


area; or 
e. the Minister cancels the state of local emergency for the affected area. 


 
22. When a declaration of a State of Local Emergency (SOLE) has been terminated, the Village of 


Glenwood shall cause the details of the termination to be published immediately by such means of 
communication considered most likely to notify the population of the area affected. 
 


23. Should any provisions of this Bylaw become invalid, void, illegal or otherwise not enforceable, it 
shall be considered separate and severable from the bylaw and the remainder shall remain in force 
and be binding as though such provision had not been invalid. 


 
24. Bylaw 239-2020-A is hereby repealed.  


 
25. This Bylaw shall come into force and take effect upon passing of third reading.  


 


Read a FIRST time this 11th day of February, 2021. 
Read a SECOND time this _____ day of _________, 2021. 
Read a THIRD time and finally passed this _____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
   
Albert Elias  Carrie Kinahan 
Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 


 








 4:22:40PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2021-Apr-6Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 1


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20210065 2021-03-18 A-DAM MECHANIC INC. PAYMENT  1,202.65


2357 REPAIR GENERATORS  1,202.65 


 20210066 2021-03-18 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  5,042.51


21-1037798 UTILITIES  5,042.51 


 20210067 2021-03-18 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT  1,452.86


0172-42,563 MARCH EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  1,452.86 


 20210068 2021-03-18 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT  156.05


2020.12.31 EI CORRECTION FOR 2020  156.05 


 20210069 2021-03-18 CHIEF MOUNTAIN GAS CO-OP LTD PAYMENT  958.13


31657 SHOP FURNACE REPAIR  958.13 


 20210070 2021-03-18 CHIEF MOUNTAIN REG. SOLID WASTE AUTH. PAYMENT  4,337.10


2829 1ST HALF OF ANNUAL REQ.  4,337.10 


 20210071 2021-03-18 CHINOOK FOUNDATION PAYMENT  5,733.49


2021.REQ 2021 REQUISITION  5,733.49 


 20210072 2021-03-18 EDWARDS, JANET PAYMENT  99.86


LETO-047754 WATER PLANT SUPPLIES  99.86 


 20210073 2021-03-18 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT  152.18


00217675A GENERATOR EM./ WATER T. PLANT/ OFFICE 152.18 


 20210074 2021-03-18 PUROLATOR PAYMENT  62.91


446889544 ELEMENTS- SAMPLE DELIVERY  62.91 


 20210075 2021-03-18 REVIEW PRINTING PAYMENT  1,327.96


6220 CHEQ./BILLING/ENVELOPES  1,327.96 


 20210076 2021-03-18 TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS PAYMENT  537.39


34538 CHEMICALS & DRUMS  537.39 


*** End of Report ***


Total  21,063.09








 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,847.32) (5,829.16) (5,900.00)  0.00 (5,900.00)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (52,143.99) (49,550.53) (53,200.00)  0.00 (53,200.00)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (14,004.13) (16,244.27) (14,300.00)  0.00 (14,300.00)


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (227,298.55) (228,324.21) (231,800.00)  0.00 (231,800.00)


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (22,805.99) (22,800.00) (23,300.00)  0.00 (23,300.00)


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (322,099.98) (322,748.17) (328,500.00) 0.00 (328,500.00)


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (1,221.00) (1,050.00) (300.00) (438.51)  138.51 


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (172.05) (223.65) (180.00) (32.45) (147.55)


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00)  0.00 (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (280.00)  166.00 (240.00) (200.00) (40.00)


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,970.46) (3,020.80) (2,000.00) (762.60) (1,237.40)


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (1,893.08) (3,969.49) (4,000.00) (1,290.86) (2,709.14)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (18,354.44) (20,735.27) (18,400.00) (7,400.72) (10,999.28)


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (5,804.40) (3,253.92) (3,500.00) (429.53) (3,070.47)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (30,745.43) (32,087.13) (28,720.00) (10,554.67) (18,165.33)


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (1,500.00) (82,017.16) (25,300.00)  0.00 (25,300.00)


1-00-00-00-00-751 Grants - ACP Intermunicipal (4,414.89)  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,147.00) (31,607.00) (23,705.00)  0.00 (23,705.00)


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (40,061.89) (113,624.16) (49,005.00) 0.00 (49,005.00)







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (35.00) (974.89) (200.00)  0.00 (200.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (35.00) (974.89) (200.00) 0.00 (200.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (110.00) (276.79) (200.00)  0.00 (200.00)


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (400.00) (140.00) (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (510.00) (416.79) (300.00) 0.00 (300.00)


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install (5,000.00) (9,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 (1,000.00)


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (270.00) (240.00) (100.00) (90.00) (10.00)


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (123,579.31) (118,210.05) (120,400.00) (38,754.03) (81,645.97)


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,578.42) (5,708.00) (3,000.00) (352.24) (2,647.76)


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (222.93) (359.10) (500.00) (292.01) (207.99)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (132,650.66) (133,517.15) (125,000.00) (39,488.28) (85,511.72)


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (11,292.32) (16,809.76) (17,000.00) (7,272.00) (9,728.00)


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (11,292.32) (16,809.76) (17,000.00) (7,272.00) (9,728.00)


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install (2,000.00) (7,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 (1,000.00)


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (22,578.00) (20,830.00) (21,400.00) (7,308.00) (14,092.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,126.35) (3,454.50) (3,000.00) (118.00) (2,882.00)


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (2,125.00) (2,000.00)  0.00 (2,000.00)


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (31,704.35) (33,409.50) (27,400.00) (7,426.00) (19,974.00)







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,992.00) (14,428.01) (14,000.00) (5,528.00) (8,472.00)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,992.00) (14,428.01) (14,000.00) (5,528.00) (8,472.00)


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,130.00) (265.00) (600.00) (360.00) (240.00)


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (1,250.00) (504.19) (500.00) (346.49) (153.51)


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00 (2,293.55) (1,375.00) (4,228.61)  2,853.61 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (2,380.00) (3,062.74) (2,475.00) (4,935.10) 2,460.10


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,988.75) (500.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 (1,000.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (399.50)  0.00 (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (45,806.31) (44,388.59) (40,200.00)  100.00 (40,300.00)


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (2,950.00) (533.45) (3,000.00) (130.00) (2,870.00)


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue (1,400.00) (2,200.00) (2,400.00) (800.00) (1,600.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (52,544.56) (47,622.04) (46,700.00) (830.00) (45,870.00)


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance  415.00 (800.00) (200.00) (435.00)  235.00 


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Capital  0.00  0.00 (5,000.00)  0.00 (5,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R 415.00 (800.00) (5,200.00) (435.00) (4,765.00)


**       TOTAL Revenue (636,601.19) (719,500.34) (644,500.00) (76,469.05) (568,030.95)







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,700.00  6,300.00  11,000.00  2,000.00  9,000.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  3,826.16  2,049.25  6,000.00  196.67  5,803.33 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  2,322.89  995.10  4,000.00  20.76  3,979.24 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 16,849.05 9,344.35 21,000.00 2,217.43 18,782.57


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  84,671.54  88,743.01  70,300.00  17,822.18  52,477.82 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  2,895.42  1,741.51  4,250.00  458.71  3,791.29 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  6,119.31  5,842.04  5,000.00  1,258.53  3,741.47 


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  15,592.87  16,205.25  12,600.00  4,177.65  8,422.35 


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,551.22  2,928.52  3,000.00  701.73  2,298.27 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  0.00  329.50  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,366.96  599.15  2,000.00  551.67  1,448.33 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,044.19  1,046.03  1,500.00  171.04  1,328.96 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  891.36  906.26  1,000.00  151.04  848.96 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,863.37  6,935.61  6,600.00  2,425.28  4,174.72 


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  34,959.05  28,262.62  31,500.00  9,360.04  22,139.96 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,056.94  1,865.66  2,500.00  425.22  2,074.78 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  1,510.48  1,459.28  600.00  317.67  282.33 


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  13,446.10  14,241.85  14,100.00  14,657.05 (557.05)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  90.00  65.00  200.00  20.00  180.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  505.83  514.53  800.00  0.00  800.00 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,927.50  7,910.00  8,400.00  0.00  8,400.00 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  4,758.90  2,256.04  2,750.00  2,037.44  712.56 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,415.71  1,300.00  0.00  1,300.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,685.91  2,667.05  2,750.00  719.99  2,030.01 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,413.95  1,372.11  1,500.00  463.52  1,036.48 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,729.48  1,753.36  2,750.00  299.00  2,451.00 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  178,644.74  180,429.47  228,900.00  0.00  228,900.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 372,975.12 369,489.56 406,300.00 56,017.76 350,282.24







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  250.00  150.00  1,000.00  150.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.00  0.00  50.00  0.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  361.63  1,196.02  1,000.00  187.50  812.50 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  0.00  0.00  50.00  8.38  41.62 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  2,092.38  2,151.83  1,950.00  578.41  1,371.59 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  2,404.72  2,381.70  1,900.00  817.02  1,082.98 


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,104.64  6,125.70  11,500.00  5,888.36  5,611.64 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  1,150.24  1,185.00  1,200.00  290.42  909.58 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-23-00-00-00-260 Emergency Management Goods and Services  0.00  0.00  3,300.00  1,269.34  2,030.66 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 12,963.61 13,190.25 22,450.00 9,189.43 13,260.57


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,101.60  3,157.23  2,800.00  811.83  1,988.17 


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  197.70  204.81  200.00  60.10  139.90 


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  1,101.66  1,071.90  200.00  293.71 (93.71)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,508.12  15,785.82  13,900.00  4,059.22  9,840.78 


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  988.33  1,024.23  900.00  300.61  599.39 


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  970.94  704.18  1,000.00  276.85  723.15 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  228.64  150.00  5,000.00  912.50  4,087.50 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  993.12  948.38  2,000.00  111.85  1,888.15 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,298.06  363.54  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  920.01  736.14  800.00  1,734.00 (934.00)


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  2,547.96  931.71  3,200.00  0.00  3,200.00 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  151.32  333.57  500.00  32.99  467.01 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  589.30  798.28  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  1,292.00  1,072.59  900.00  173.28  726.72 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 30,888.76 27,282.38 33,400.00 8,766.94 24,633.06







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  17,839.28  19,053.59  17,400.00  4,059.22  13,340.78 


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,041.20  1,198.92  1,100.00  300.61  799.39 


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  970.94  724.90  1,200.00  276.85  923.15 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  1,177.00  2,390.00  2,000.00  24.00  1,976.00 


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  482.62  3,534.43  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  3,001.28  1,333.69  11,000.00  141.39  10,858.61 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  12,329.42  12,464.92  12,200.00  3,150.63  9,049.37 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 36,841.74 40,700.45 45,900.00 7,952.70 37,947.30


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  8,534.35  8,870.61  7,000.00  1,623.67  5,376.33 


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  700.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  973.75  312.16  750.00  0.00  750.00 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  2,598.47  3,212.49  3,700.00  190.58  3,509.42 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 12,106.57 13,095.26 11,950.00 1,814.25 10,135.75


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  21,831.84  22,002.16  29,800.00  5,433.33  24,366.67 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,763.93  1,891.36  2,700.00  480.57  2,219.43 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,846.51  1,346.13  2,300.00  462.30  1,837.70 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  3,553.10  2,030.87  3,000.00  165.99  2,834.01 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,191.36  906.26  1,100.00  151.05  948.95 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  12,015.10  16,231.36  11,000.00 (1,047.31)  12,047.31 


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  2,451.60  4,134.23  3,000.00  148.06  2,851.94 


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  31.14  0.00  1,500.00  31.34  1,468.66 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  4,464.17  6,721.78  6,500.00  1,528.97  4,971.03 


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  12,076.98  12,077.73  10,900.00  3,541.95  7,358.05 


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,545.23  3,994.76  3,900.00  1,214.97  2,685.03 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,655.62  3,902.56  3,500.00  0.00  3,500.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 68,426.58 75,239.20 79,200.00 12,111.22 67,088.78







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,101.60  3,157.23  2,800.00  811.83  1,988.17 


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  197.70  204.81  200.00  60.10  139.90 


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  276.80  224.38  200.00  77.05  122.95 


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  2,481.70  10,375.80  5,250.00  0.00  5,250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 6,057.80 13,962.22 8,950.00 948.98 8,001.02


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  6,519.50  250.00  3,580.00 (3,330.00)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  7,792.56  8,187.56  9,339.00  4,337.10  5,001.90 


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  3,126.80  4,050.48  4,100.00  4,234.02 (134.02)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 10,919.36 18,757.54 13,939.00 12,151.12 1,787.88


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  3,346.52  5,713.55  2,100.00  811.83  1,288.17 


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  200.00  1,909.32  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  1,006.25  1,012.86  1,100.00  262.04  837.96 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  130.65  500.00  0.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 4,552.77 8,766.38 3,950.00 1,073.87 2,876.13


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,681.12  7,115.10  1,730.00  3,301.24 (1,571.24)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,863.00  0.00  3,800.00  0.00  3,800.00 


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 5,544.12 7,115.10 6,030.00 3,301.24 2,728.76







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  19.05  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,150.00  0.00  3,000.00  0.00  3,000.00 


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  5,978.61  7,187.03  2,000.00  811.87  1,188.13 


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,142.36  31.58  3,500.00  236.27  3,263.73 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  1,064.68  1,076.29  1,000.00  285.17  714.83 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  855.88  881.23  800.00  274.16  525.84 


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 12,191.53 9,195.18 10,800.00 1,607.47 9,192.53


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  886.57  2,086.75  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00 


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  10.45  75.13  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  15,000.00  15,000.00  15,000.00  0.00  15,000.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,531.16  2,581.72  2,600.00  1,226.08  1,373.92 


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 18,428.18 19,743.60 19,100.00 1,226.08 17,873.92


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  1,275.00  350.00  2,800.00  0.00  2,800.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  315.00  150.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  1,601.89  1,430.28  1,000.00  48.98  951.02 


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  2,108.79  2,328.34  1,500.00  546.29  953.71 


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,456.03  1,313.63  1,125.00  487.82  637.18 


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 6,756.71 5,572.25 6,925.00 1,083.09 5,841.91


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  22,604.66  19,639.26  20,200.00  0.00  20,200.00 


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  1,014.14  824.45  700.00  0.00  700.00 


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  1,432.00  332.00  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  2,786.58  1,199.16  1,000.00  330.56  669.44 


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  21,312.83  19,885.77  14,000.00  0.00  14,000.00 


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,702.28  1,627.95  1,700.00  290.03  1,409.97 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  1,019.48  1,027.70  1,100.00  360.06  739.94 


2-74-03-00-00-810 Pioneer Parlour Merchant Fees  0.00  3,671.72  0.00  0.00  0.00 


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 51,871.97 48,208.01 40,200.00 980.65 39,219.35







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  0.00  8,384.00  0.00  8,384.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Beautification  1,788.75  119.31  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00  2,446.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  300.00  300.00  300.00  300.00  0.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  801.01  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,870.52  5,828.54  5,900.00  5,733.49  166.51 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,553.30  4,689.90  5,200.00  0.00  5,200.00 


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  71,341.78  71,145.90  72,600.00  0.00  72,600.00 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 47.17  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 Operating Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  40,001.00  0.00  40,001.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 89,077.10 86,529.65 137,331.00 6,033.49 131,297.51


**       TOTAL Expenses 756,450.97 766,191.38 868,300.00 126,475.72 741,824.28


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 119,849.78 46,691.04 223,800.00 50,006.67 173,793.33







 4:39:28PM


2021-Apr-6


2021 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2021 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (91,802.29) (94,708.13) (236,900.00) (162,210.00) (74,690.00)


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC  0.00 (119,000.00) (50,000.00)  0.00 (50,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (91,802.29) (213,708.13) (286,900.00) (162,210.00) (124,690.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (91,802.29) (213,708.13) (286,900.00) (162,210.00) (124,690.00)


Capital Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  30,000.00  15,000.00  15,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-762 Vlg Maint - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  25,000.00  0.00  25,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  10,000.00  0.00  10,000.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  5,000.00 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  206,900.00  40,926.74  165,973.26 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  15,000.00  0.00  15,000.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 291,900.00 55,926.74 235,973.26


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 291,900.00 55,926.74 235,973.26


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (91,802.29) (213,708.13) 5,000.00 (106,283.26) 111,283.26


*** End of Report ***





